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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF THE CURRENCY

In the Matter of:
Seaway National Bank of Chicago
Chicago, Illinois

)
)
)

CONSENT ORDER

The Comptroller of the Currency of the United States of America (Comptroller), through

his National Bank Examiner, has examined Seaway National Bank of Chicago, Chicago, Illinois

(Bank), and his findings are contained in the Report of Examination, dated October 19, 2001

(ROE).

The Bank, by and through its duly elected and acting Board of Directors (Board), has

executed a “Stipulation and Consent to the Issuance of a Consent Order,” dated January 22,

2002, that is accepted by the Comptroller.  By this Stipulation and Consent, that is incorporated

by reference, the Bank has consented to the issuance of this Consent Order (Order) by the

Comptroller.

Pursuant to the authority vested in him by the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, as

amended, 12 U.S.C. § 1818, the Comptroller hereby orders that:

ARTICLE I

CREDIT AND COLLATERAL EXCEPTIONS

(1) Within thirty (30) days the Board shall obtain current and satisfactory credit

information on all national commitment loans where the Bank acts as the lead bank.  A listing of

deficiencies was provided to management by the National Bank Examiners at the conclusion of

the examination.
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(2) Within thirty (30) days the Board shall review all national commitment lines in

which the Bank is a participant to ensure that all credit files are complete and documentation is

consistent with safe and sound banking practices.

(3) Effective immediately, the Bank may grant, extend, renew, alter or restructure any

national commitment line or other extension of credit only after:

(a) securing binding participation agreements for any amounts in excess of the

Bank’s legal lending limit as defined by 12 U.S.C. 84; and

(b) ensuring all applicable documentation is obtained and reviewed for

completeness, including the participation agreements with each applicable

participant institution.

ARTICLE II

LENDING POLICY

(1) Within thirty (30) days, the Board shall review and revise the Bank's written loan

policy and procedures with regard to administration of the Bank’s national commitment lines.  In

revising this policy, the Board shall refer to the Loan Portfolio Management booklet, A-LPM, of

the Comptroller’s Handbook.  This policy shall incorporate, but not necessarily be limited to, the

following:

(a) a provision that ensures all credit file documents be obtained, organized,

and reviewed by a senior bank representative prior to approval;

(b) measures to correct the deficiencies in the Bank's lending procedures

noted in the ROE;

(c) guidelines designed to improve Board oversight of the loan approval

process, specifically with regard to the national commitment lines; and
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(d) guidelines for periodic review of the Bank's adherence to the revised

lending policy.

(2) Upon adoption, the policy shall be implemented, the Board shall thereafter ensure

Bank adherence to the policy, and a copy of the policy shall be forwarded to the Assistant

Deputy Comptroller for review.

(3) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has processes, personnel, and control

systems to ensure implementation of and adherence to the policy developed pursuant to this

Article.

ARTICLE III

VIOLATIONS OF LAW - LENDING LIMITS

(1) The Bank shall not lend money or otherwise extend credit to any borrower in

violation of the Bank's legal lending limit at 12 U.S.C. § 84.

(2) Within thirty (30) days, the Bank shall cause all loans or other extensions of credit

which exceed the Bank's legal lending limit at 12 U.S.C. § 84 to be reduced to conforming

amounts.

(3) Within thirty (30) days, the Board shall establish, implement, and thereafter

ensure Bank adherence to written procedures to prevent future violations of 12 U.S.C. § 84.

(4) The Board shall ensure that the Bank has policies, processes, personnel, and

control systems to ensure implementation of and adherence to the procedures developed pursuant

to this Article.
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ARTICLE IV

CLOSING

(1) Although the Board is by this Order required to submit certain proposed actions

and programs for the review or approval of the Assistant Deputy Comptroller, the Board has the

ultimate responsibility for proper and sound management of the Bank.

(2) It is expressly and clearly understood that if, at any time, the Comptroller deems it

appropriate in fulfilling the responsibilities placed upon him by the several laws of the United

States of America to undertake any action affecting the Bank, nothing in this Order shall in any

way inhibit, estop, bar or otherwise prevent the Comptroller from so doing.

(3) Any time limitations imposed by this Order shall begin to run from the effective

date of this Order.  Such time limitations may be extended in writing by the Assistant Deputy

Comptroller for good cause upon written application by the Board.

(4) The provisions of this Order are effective upon issuance of this Order by the

Comptroller, through his authorized representative whose hand appears below, and shall remain

effective and enforceable, except to the extent that, and until such time as, any provisions of this

Order shall have been amended, suspended, waived, or terminated in writing by the Comptroller.

(5) This Order is intended to be, and shall be construed to be, a final order issued

pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(b), and expressly does not form, and may not be construed to form,

a contract binding on the OCC or the United States.  Notwithstanding the absence of mutuality of

obligation, or of consideration, or of a contract, the OCC may enforce any of the commitments or

obligations herein undertaken by the Bank under its supervisory powers, including 12 U.S.C.

§ 1818(i), and not as a matter of contract law.  The Bank expressly acknowledges that neither the

Bank nor the OCC has any intention to enter into a contract.  The Bank also expressly
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acknowledges that no OCC officer or employee has statutory or other authority to bind the

United States, the U.S. Treasury Department, the OCC, or any other federal bank regulatory

agency or entity, or any officer or employee of any of those entities to a contract affecting the

OCC’s exercise of its supervisory responsibilities.  The terms of this Order, including this

paragraph, are not subject to amendment or modification by any extraneous expression, prior

agreements or arrangements, or negotiations between the parties, whether oral or written.

IT IS SO ORDERED, this 22nd day of January, 2002.

/s/ Gilbert D. Barker 1-22-2002
Gilbert D. Barker
Assistant Deputy Comptroller
Chicago South Field Office

Date



UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
DEPARTMENT OF THE TREASURY

OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER OF THE CURRENCY

In the Matter of:
Seaway National Bank of Chicago
Chicago, Illinois

)
)
)

STIPULATION AND CONSENT TO THE ISSUANCE
OF A CONSENT ORDER

The Comptroller of the Currency of the United States of America (Comptroller) has

initiated cease and desist proceedings against Seaway National Bank of Chicago, Chicago,

Illinois (Bank) pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(b).

The Bank, in the interest of compliance and cooperation, consents to the issuance of a

Consent Order, dated January 22, 2002 (Order);

In consideration of the above premises, the Comptroller, through his authorized

representative, and the Bank, through its duly elected and acting Board of Directors, hereby

stipulate and agree to the following:

ARTICLE I

Jurisdiction

(1) The Bank is a national banking association chartered and examined by the

Comptroller pursuant to the National Bank Act of 1864, as amended, 12 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.

(2) The Comptroller is “the appropriate Federal banking agency” regarding the Bank

pursuant to 12 U.S.C. §§ 1813(q) and 1818(b).

(3) The Bank is an “insured depository institution” within the meaning of 12 U.S.C.

§ 1818(b)(1).



ARTICLE II

Agreement

(1) The Bank, without admitting or denying any wrongdoing, hereby consents and

agrees to the issuance of the Order by the Comptroller.  The Bank further agrees that said Order

shall be deemed an “order issued with the consent of the depository institution” as defined in

12 U.S.C. § 1818(h)(2), and consents and agrees that said Order shall become effective upon its

issuance and shall be fully enforceable by the Comptroller under the provisions of 12 U.S.C.

§ 1818(i).

ARTICLE III

Waivers

(1) The Bank, by signing this Stipulation and Consent, hereby waives:

(a) the issuance of a Notice of Charges pursuant to 12 U.S.C. § 1818(b);

(b) any and all procedural rights available in connection with the issuance of

the Order;

(c) all rights to seek any type of administrative or judicial review of the

Order; and

(d) any and all rights to challenge or contest the validity of the Order.

ARTICLE IV

Other Action

(1) The Bank agrees that the provisions of this Stipulation and Consent shall not

inhibit, estop, bar, or otherwise prevent the Comptroller from taking any other action affecting



the Bank if, at any time, he/she deems it appropriate to do so to fulfill the responsibilities placed

upon him by the several laws of the United States of America.

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned, authorized by the Comptroller as his

representative, has hereunto set his hand on behalf of the Comptroller.

/s/ Gilbert D. Barker 1-22-2002
Gilbert D. Barker
Assistant Deputy Comptroller
Chicago South Field Office

Date

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the undersigned, as the duly elected and acting Board of

Directors of the Bank, have hereunto set their hands on behalf of the Bank.

/s/ 1-22-02
Richard S. Abrams

/s/

Date

1-22-2002

William Bates, Jr. Date

Arnita Y. Boswell, Ph.D.

/s/

Date

1-22-2002

Joseph Caldwell

/s/

Date

Jan. 22, 2002

Phyllis Davis

/s/

Date

1-22-02

Jacoby Dickens Date



/s/ 1/22/02

William H. Dunbar, Jr.

/s/

Date

1/22/02

Walter E. Grady

/s/

Date

1/22/2002

Jory Luster Date

Date


